
Following please find portions of the Town Council’s February 8, 2016 draft minutes relative to the Parks 
and Recreation Commission: 
 

COMMUNICATIONS 

A. Discussion and Potential Action on Setting Fees for Use of Ninigret Park for Festival Events 

 
Mr. Tremblay read the following statement: 

At its December 2015 meeting, the Town Council charged the Director of Parks and Recreation, in 
consultation with the Parks and Recreation Commission, with the task of arriving at a fair and 

equitable fee structure for leasing portions of Ninigret Park to producers of major events.  The current 

practice of charging a flat fee of $9,000 appears to be of whimsical origin; attempts to determine its 
historical basis have not been successful.  Meanwhile, applications for use of the park invite arbitrary 

and sometimes contentious debate because there are no policy guidelines in place for the fee 

structure.   
 

In the charge to Parks and Recreation, it was suggested that a rational basis for setting fees would 
account for how much land is rented out, and for how long.  A retrospective analysis using those 

parameters for the previous year showed the flat fee of $9,000 cost the Chamber of Commerce $6.16 

per rented acre for each hour of its Seafood Festival, while Rhythm and Roots was charged about half 
that amount, $3.30 per rented acre for each hour of its music festival.  Essentially, the Town rented 

bare land to the promoters of these two events at substantially different rates.  This is not meant to 

suggest favoritism toward one applicant over another, but it does suggest an irrational fee structure 
that contributes to the drumbeat of criticism over leasing parts of the Park. That drumbeat has kept 

me busy for the better part of two years. 
 

At its recent meeting, the Parks and Recreation Commission declined to study the matter, and the 

Director of Parks and Recreation elected to adopt the Commission's recommendation to continue past 
practice, unchanged.  This is unacceptable.   

 

There is much rhetoric, but no data, on the importance of these festival events to the business 

community.  In the absence of the requested analysis, but in deference to the business community, I 

suggest we use the Chamber of Commerce as a guide to revising the fee structure.  The Charlestown 
Chamber of Commerce, which represents some 80 businesses, has agreed to pay $9,000 to use the 

park for its Seafood Festival.   

 

Motion made by Mr. Tremblay and seconded by Ms. Lee that the Town Council set the fee for use of the 

park at the rate of $6.16 per festival hour for each acre occupied or otherwise rendered inaccessible by the 

event, payable in advance and refundable for festival hours cancelled due to inclement weather and that the 

Town council authorize the Town Administrator to calculate and enforce these terms.  

 
For a point of reference, if we used that formula last year, Rhythm and Roots would have paid 

$16,791. It’s also important to point out that formula also provides incentive to make economical use 
of space, and hours of operation. 

 

I ask the Town Administrator to use the proposed formula to determine the appropriate fee for each 
application, and report the results as an advisory for Council action. 

 

Mr. Quillen read the following statement: 
            The Parks and Rec Commission - past, present and as long as I’ve been involved - has had the opinion 

and the option to keep it at $9,000. The opinion has always been, “Until we do some drastic changes 
to the Park infrastructure, we can’t see justifying raising the fees at the Park.” 

            We’ve seen the reports comparing Ninigret Park to Newport, Jamestown, and other venues we’ve 

looked at it all – it’s been coming up every six months ever since I’ve been on board. 



            We need to greatly improve the infrastructure before we can compare Ninigret and start going 

forward. 
            We all have fee fatigue – that’s the problem. That’s why it’s been coming so often. George, we thought 

you were going to come to the Parks and Recs Commission meeting about this when we had our 
meeting, but we were thinking that maybe – I thought we should have a subcommittee maybe to look at 

this change and include some people from the Park and Recs Commission, some Town Council 

people, Pat Anderson, DPW – get everybody that’s involved in this – to come up with a better formula. 
 

Mr. Tremblay stated that this formula was based on what the Chamber of Commerce currently spends. He 

stated that the fee schedule should be equitable and invited any suggestions for a better formula. 
 

Mr. Gentz stated that given the time that Mr. Tremblay and others had put into the issue, the Council needed to 
come up with an analytical approach to what exists at the Park today and to move forward from there. 

 

Mr. Glista expressed his concerns regarding the effects of the festivals on the local business and how the fee 

structure was originally developed. He read from the December 14, 2015 Town Council minutes as follows: 

“He [Mr. Tremblay] noted that the setting of the fee schedules by Town Charter was to be by the 
Director of Parks and Recreation in consultation with the Parks and Recreation Commission.” 

Mr. Glista noted that earlier in the meeting Mr. Tremblay stated that he didn’t want to be in an adversarial 

position with Parks and Rec and suggested that that was exactly what was happening. 
 

Mr. Glista referenced Mr. Tremblay’s earlier comment as follows: 

“There is much rhetoric, but no data, on the importance of these festival events to the business 
community.” 

Mr. Glista referenced the Planning Department’s 2008 report as follows: 
            “There is a tremendous feeling among the respondents that the Ninigret Park festivals enhance the 

Charlestown community. The majority of business owners and managers look forward to the festivals. 

Some respondents have gone further to say that they would like more events to take place in the 
Park.” 

 

Mr. Glista noted that the Seafood Festival was incorrectly being utilized as the baseline for the formula. 

 

At 10:00 p.m., a motion was made by Ms. Van Slyke, seconded by Ms. Lee and approved unanimously to 

extend the meeting for 30 minutes. 

 

He read excerpts from the December 14, 2015 Town Council video as follows: 
At 1:15, Mr. Tremblay said, “My objective was not to generate revenue for the Town.” 

At 1:18, Mr. Tremblay said, referring to the fees, “The Council does not set it.” 
At 1:24, Mr. Tremblay said “I’m not driven by trying to generate revenue for the Town.” 

At 1:54, Ms. Lee said, “In essence [referring to Mr. Tremblay’s motion], what you are asking for is a 

written policy from Parks and Recreation about what fees to charge and what fees to waive.” She 
continues, “You’re not proposing fee increases. You’re not proposing anything else.” 

At 1:31, Mr. Gentz responded to Ms. Lee by saying, “I didn’t hear any fee increases in there, just 

what makes sense on an analytical basis.” 

 

Mr. Glista stated that he had no problem with the formula; he stated that the $9,000 fee should be applied to a 
mid-range festival for the convenience of raising fees. He stated that the fee standard of $9,000 should be 

applied to the largest festival; this would reduce the Seafood Festival fee to $4,825. 

 
Mr. Tremblay stated that the proposed formula was intended to correct the inequities in the manner in which 

user fees are charged; stating that he used the Chamber’s event as they represent 80 businesses in Town and 
have never complained about the fee. 

 



Ms. Lee suggested that the formula be based on $3.30 per acre used, as it would still be a rational basis for the 

fee and could be revisited in future. 
 

Mr. Tremblay referenced Mr. Glista’s comments that the businesses benefit from the events in the Park and 
stated that there was no hard data to his knowledge to justify that statement. He explained that the closest he 

could come to giving businesses a voice in the issue was to use the event sponsored by the Chamber of 

Commerce that represents 80 local for-profit businesses. He read the following: 
I urge the Parks and Recreation Department to review established policy by the Town of Jamestown 

for applicable policy guidelines for rental of our own municipal park facilities. 

He noted that the Town of Jamestown categorizes for-profits, non-profits, and charitable organizations. 
 

Ms. Van Slyke inquired whether the formula addressed the set up time that the festivals utilize the Park; Mr. 
Tremblay stated that setup and break down times were proportional to the length of the event. 

 

Ms. Eaves stated that she supported Mr. Tremblay’s formula, but noted the increase to Rhythm and Roots fees 

by 82%. She suggested that the Council could consider a Subcommittee to further study the event fees. 

 
Mr. Gentz noted the necessity to make a decision, as the next agenda item was the 2016 Rhythm and Roots 

Event application. 

 
Ms. Van Slyke noted that the events fees have been frozen since 2009 and there has been some inflation over 

that period of time. 

 
Ms. Lee stated that she supported the formula, but suggested that there could be some negotiation with Rhythm 

and Roots if the costs should appear to be too high. Mr. Gentz suggested that the event organizers could cut 
back on their acreage or time. 

 

Mr. Tremblay noted that the option of multi-year contracts at a discounted rate could be considered as well. 
 

The question was called; the motion passed unanimously. 

 

 


